
         

 

 

TERRACINA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.terracinacdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 

AGENDA 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park 
2101 Vista Parkway 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

November 13, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. September 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Discussion Regarding POA Electrical Service to Fountains/Aerators in District Lakes 

a. Consider Approval of Banner Electric’s Proposal for Fountain Meters………………..Page 5 

2. Consider Approval of Sinkhole Proposals…………………………………………………..Page 6 

H. New Business 

I. Auditor Selection Committee 

1. Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor……………………………………Page 8 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report……………………………………………………………………………..Page 9 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 

 

 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The September 11, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Terracina Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 9:05 a.m. in a Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park located 
at 2101 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33411. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Palm Beach Post on September 30, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Present and constituting a quorum were Chairman Guy Colella and Supervisors Sheik Ameer, Linda 
Colella and Jose Esquerte and all was in order to proceed with the meeting. 
 
Staff present were: District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and General 
Counsel Frank Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  July 10, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the July 10, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting were presented and the 
Board was asked if there were any comments or questions. 
 
Mrs. Colella advised of one revision of the time adjourned of 11:06 a.m. should be 10:06 a.m.  Mr. 
Esquerete advised of another correction under adopting the fiscal year budget 2023/2024 in the motion 
his name is listed a “Ms. Esquerete” and it should be “Mr. Esquerete.”  
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Colella, seconded by Mr. Esquerete and unanimously passed approving 
the minutes of the July 10, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding POA Electrical Service to Fountains/Aerators in District Lakes 

 Consider Banner Electric’s Proposal for Fountain Meters 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Ms. Bethel indicated she had reached out to FPL who advised her to go through the projects portal and 
open a new project.  Once that had been completed, someone reached out to her about the project.  She 
was contacted by the project manager and noted that they did not provide proposals, but they would 
just go out and complete the project.  Therefore, Ms. Bethel reached out to Banner Electric and the 
proposal was provided in the meeting materials.  Ms. Bethel stated that Mr. Banner explained that two 
fountains would have to run cables underground.  Ms. Bethel went on to explain that the amended 
budget allows for one special project, either the meters for the fountains or the sinkholes.  A lengthy 
discussion ensued.  Mr. Colella indicated that maybe they could figure out a payment for the HOA, but 
the sinkhole project was more important.  Mrs. Colella and Mr. Esquerete agreed with Mr. Colella.  
Mr. Ameer stated that the proposals were expensive and they should reach out to a few other vendors 
to get a few more.  Mr. Palen agreed with multiple proposals and indicated state law for 3 bids and a 
buy.  Mr. Ameer noted he would reach out to the landscaper for a proposal for the sinkholes and send 
Ms. Bethel the contact information for an electrician for the fountain meter project.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Revised Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 
2022/2023 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Bethel went over the budget with the Board and stated that it was in line with their projected 
budget.  A few little overages but everything was in order.  In addition, a line item was added for 
special projects, as discussed earlier, the meters for the fountains or the sinkholes.  Mr. Colella gave 
his summary of the budget.  After a lengthy discussion, the following motion was made: 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Esquerete, seconded by Mr. Colella and unanimously passed adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Revised Budget, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Allstate’s Sinkhole Proposal 
 
This was previously discussed under Old Business. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Mr. Ameer inquired about insurance coverage.  Ms. Bethel indicated she knew insurance covers Board 
Members but was not sure what else.  Messrs. Ameer and Esquerete would like to know if it covers 
sinkholes.  Ms. Bethel will find out and advise accordingly.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Mrs. Colella inquired about the downed fountains.  Ms. Bethel stated that Mr. Roberts from Allstate 
had been notified of the recent fountain issues and was working on them.  Mr. Ameer mentioned the 
fountain by the clubhouse, southside was rocking.  Ms. Bethel advised she would notify Allstate.  
  
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Esquerete, 
seconded by Mr. Ameer adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 9:53 a.m.  Upon being put to a vote, 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 4



Page 5



03.Terracina.SinknholeRepair.Pro 

 
 
 
 

SPECIAL SERVICE AGREEMENT / SINKHOLE REPAIR 

Terracina Community Development District 
c/o Special District Services  
2501A Burns Road     561-630-4922 Ext 227 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410       sbethel@sdsinc.org

DATE:           TERMS:                                   DELIVERY: 
08/11/2023        Balance due upon job completion        Five to six (5 to 6) weeks 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
DESCRIPTION                              AMOUNT 
Repair eighteen (18) eroded shoreline areas as follows:  $ 53,750.00 / one-time 

 Remove old sod within sinkholes 
 Add riprap bags at immediate washed-out shoreline area for stabilization 
 Riprap bags will be staggered two rows high and secured with rebar 
 Backfill washed out area with fresh fill 
 Install geotextile fabric on top of fresh fill to reduce future washout 
 Install sod over fabric / repaired areas (watering of sod responsibility of HOA) 
 Sod will be pinned in place to prevent movement  

Areas of work:  lake #1, 1 area   lake #3, 1 area   lake #4, 1 area   lake #5, 1 area   lake #6, 3 
areas   lake #7, 1 area  lake #8, 4 areas  lake #10, 3 areas  lake #11, 1 area  lake #12, 2 areas  
____________________________________________________________________________ 

THIS OFFER IS GOOD FOR THIRTY (30) DAYS FROM DATE OF QUOTATION. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

ALLSTATE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, INC.  CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE:  The above  
prices, specifications and conditions are                               
satisfactory and are hereby accepted and                             
the signers acknowledge that they are                                  

       authorized to execute this document. 

__________________________   __________________________ 
ALLSTATE (Signature)    CUSTOMER (Signature) 

__________________________   __________________________ 
NAME / TITLE (Printed)    NAME / TITLE (Printed) 

__________________________   ______________________ 
DATE       DATE 

Page 6



A B O U T T H E

P R O J E C T

OCTOBER 10 ,
2023

P R O P O S A L F O R
T E R R A C I N A H O A

Scope of work:

Green Cactus agrees to complete

and fulfill all specifications listed.

Upon agreement of this proposal

Owner agrees that Green cactus has

complied with all provisions of this

contract.

A 50% deposit is required to start

project. Once project is completes

the remainder balance will be billed

accordingly.

This contract is valid for 10 buisness

days.

Specifications

Install Fill to repair washout

locations.

16-18 total locations

throughout community.

Install Turf reinforced matting

over fill and Resod the 16-18

areas.

Total:$15,250

Labor and Material Included

WASHOUT REPAIR

By signing below, I/we hereby accept the proposal as indicated above:

_________________________________________________Date:_____________________________

Page 7



Page 8



Terracina
Community Development District

    Financial Report For
September 2023

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18


	Terracina Community Development District - November 13, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	September 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor	
	Financial Report




